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Fax/Post/Email (02) 6277 5706 and jekn.carter@aph.gov.au

Mr John Carter T +£1 3 2286 6060
Committee Secrgtary ¥ 46} :3 Gids 8488
Senate Education, Employment and Workplace Relations Committee Chgli
Department of the Senate

PO Box 6100

Parliament House

Canberra ACT 2600

Our reference; 138/31298411

Number of Pagss - 4, including this one

Dear Mr Carter
Group of Eight: Concerns regarding the Falr Work Bili 2003 (Cth)

We act for the Group of Eight (Go8). The Go8 is 2 coalition of leading Australian universities, intensive in
research and comprehensive in general and professional education.

The Go8 universities are the University of Melbourne; Monash University: the Usniversity of Western
Australia; the University of Sydney; the University of Adelaide; the Ausira lan Natioral University; the
University of Queensland and the University of New South Wales.

We are aware that submissions to the Senate Education, Employment and Workplace Relations Committes
(the Committee) in relation to the proposed Fair Work Bill 2008 (Cth) (the Bill) closed earlier in January
2009 and apologise for the lateness of this submission. However, the Go8 has just bscome aware of
provisions in the Bill which are of significant concern to it. The Go8 has therefore rcq:,:_ested that we forward
the enclosed submission to you for provision o the Committee, if possible.

The Go8 also requests an opportunity to address the Committes 2t the Melbourne hoarings seheduled for 16
and 17 February 2009. We would appreciate your advice as to whether this is possible and, il so, when the
Go8 may be able to address the Committee.

Pleage contact Graham Smith or Emma Goodwin (03 $286 6966) to discuss those matters.

Yours fajthfully

Dr Graham F Smi¢h, Partner

The information contained in this facsimile message may be confidential information, and may also 5o the subject of legal professionat privilege, If
you are not the imended recipient, any vse, diselosure or copying of this document is unauthorieed, If you have received this dosament & ervor,
please telephons +61 3 9285 6690,
Legal\l 08606947.1
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GROUP OF EIGHT

SUBMISSION TO THE SENATE EDUCATION, EMFLOYMENT AND WOHRKPL,
RELATIONS COMMITTEE REGARDING THE FAIR WOEX BILL 2008 (CTH)

The Go8 is a coalition of leading Australian universitizs, intensive in research and comprehensive in
general and professional education,

The Go8 universities are the University of Melboumne; Monash University; the University of Western
Australia; the University of Sydney; the University of Adelaide; the Australian Netional U ‘]‘-,fi.,.l ty; the
University of Queensland and the University of New South Wales.

The GoB wishes to make the following submission regarding Part 3-2 of the nroposed Fair Work Bill
2008 (Cth) (the Bill).

The need for long probationary periods of employment in the univertity sector

It is currently standard practice for universitias to include in thair enterpriss agr ements and contracts of
employment comparatively long probaticnary periods, usually of three years, for academic staff. The
reason is that long experience with academic employment has demonstrated to the Go8 r““““* cre that it is
not possible to establish in a shorter period whether a person is capable of sustained teaching and research
performance, which are the eore functions necessary for successful academic e'nploymenf.

Research projects and degrees commonly take several years to complete. It is not possible to fully assess
an academic staff member's capacity to properly undertake substantive and substantial reses _?*"; until the
staff member hag actually completed a significant research profect or higher degree, Such 2 project or
degree will take years, not months, to complete.

The research performance of academic staff is also evaluated according to the number and quality of their
publications in refereed journals, However, the time taken for preparation of a paper; submission of the
paper; consideration of the paper by a journal and referees; acceptance for formal publication; snd finally
publication, is generally well over a year and frequently two y=ars,

The teaching performance of academic staff is usually evaluated by formai student evaluations. In the
first year of an academic's employment with a university, the academic will usually teach in semester
blocks. Students will not evaluate an academic's teaching until the end of the semester and the results of
the evaluation take time to moderate. It will therefore rarely, if ever, be possible to comp! tete a full
evaluation of a new academic's teaching performance in a period of less than six monthe,

Once probation is completed, a staff member gains significant protection from performance and
disciplinary committee procedures as established in the relevant enterprise zgresment. Thie is known as
It i
tenure",

The present legal situation for probationary employees in the context of unfair dismissal

Under the existing Workplace Relations Act 1996 (Cth) (the WRA), probationary employees are
ineligible to make unfair dismissal claims, provided the probationary pc'wcd is reasonablc and has been
established in advance: section 638(1)(c) of the WRA.

The reasonableness of long probationary periods in the university context (that is, up to throe yesrs) has
long been accepted by the Australian Industrial Relations Commission. See, for example, Hocsis v
Charles Sturt University, AIRC Full Bench, Print PR911718, Munro J, Cartwiight SDF and Harson C,
26 November 2001; and Farugi v Queensiand University of Technology, AIRC Full Bench, Print 30878,
Harrison SDP, Duncan DP and Hoffman C, 12 November 1999, In both cases the special situation of
university staff is expressly acknowledged and a three year probationary period was deemed reasonable,

Legal 108606937, 1 1



L Feb. 2009 16:36 CLAYTON UTZ LVL19 6" 3 9629 8458 Yo. 1176 R

In Hornby v Canberra Institute of Technology, AIRC, Print P8183, Duncan SDP, 27 Pebruary 1998, a
three and 2 half year probationary period was held reasonable,

The present legal position enables universities to fairlv assess academic staff and o properly establish
their capacity to perform their duties effectively. The emploviment of staff who have demonstrared an
ability to perform academic work can then be confirmad at the end of that pericd while the probationary
exemption can be relied upon, if necessary, to terminate the employment of those who do not meet the
requirements which should have been met during probation.

The removal of the probationary exclusion in the Fair Work Bill 2068 (Cth)

The Go8 is deeply concerned by the fact that, under the Bill, the capacity to set a reasonable probationary
period no longer exists and probationary employees will no be longer excluded from being abis to bring
unfair dismissal claims.

Instead, academic staff of Australian universities (all of whom have more than 15 emplovess) will be
required only to complete a six month qualifying period before they have aceess to the unfair dismissal
jurisdiction of Fair Work Australia (see clause 383 of the FWE). This six month qualifying pericd is said
m the Explanatory Memorandum to be designed to give the employsr "a period of time to 2ssess the
capacity and conduct of a new employee without being subject to an unfair dismizsal clalm i they dismiss
the employee during this period” (paragraph 1512 of the Explanatory Memorandum to the Fair Work Bill
2008 (Cth) (the Explanatory Memorandum). In the Go8's submission, this is also the precise function
of a probationary period.

There is no capacity for the parties to agree to extend the six month qualifying period, as currently exists
under the WRA (see sections 643(6) and (7) of the WRA). It will be unlawful to attempt to lengthen the
qualifying period in an enterprise agreement (sse 194(d) of the FWB and paragraph 232 of the
Explanatory Memorandum).

The effect of this is that the members of the Go8 will no longer be able to rely upon lengthy but
reasonable probationary periods a8 a jurisdictional barrier to an unfair dismissal claim. This will cause
significant human resources management difficulties given the special nature of academic employment
“and the difficulties in assessing academic performance within a short period, as outlined =bove,

The Goé8's proposal

The Go8 proposes that the Federal government consider alleviating these concerns by amending the Bill

fo.

° reinstate the existing jurisdictional bar which prevents employees who are employed for &
reasonable (given the nature of the employmen?) probationary period, established in advance
of the commencement of employment, from mzking an unfair dismissal claim. A six month
default period conld be established, with the onus on an employer to demonstrate why a longer
period wag reasonable; or

° to make it possible for all employers to extend the six month qualifying period where this is
reasonable given the nature of the employment and where the extension is cstablished in
advance of the commencement of employment. A six month defanlt pericd couid be
established, with the onus on an employer to demonstrate why a longer period was rezsonable;
or

° to specifically provide that universities may, in recognition of the special nature of academic

employment, extend the six month qualifying peried where this is reasenable given the nature
of the employment and where the extension is established in advance of the commencement of
employment,
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In the GoB's submission, these proposals would permit the Federal government to continue with its policy
of a six month default period before an employee is eligible to make an unfair dismissal claim, while still
accommodating the special needs of employers such as universities,
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